
 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 1 of 11 
 

TOWNSHIP OF BLAIRSTOWN 
REGULAR COMMITTEE MEETING 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
Wednesday, June 8, 2011, 7:30 PM 

 
M I N U T E S 

 

Regular meeting begins at 7:30 pm or immediately following Closed Session, whichever comes 
last. 
 
OPENING; ROLL CALL 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Mach.  Those present were Mayor Mach, Mr. 
Anderson, Mr. Lance, Mr. Lascari, and Mr. Seal.  Also present were Township Attorney Robert 
Benbrook and Clerk Pizzaia. 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
The flag salute was conducted. 
 
SUNSHINE STATEMENT 
Mayor Mach read the following statement:  Notice of this meeting has been sent to two 
newspapers of general circulation in which notice was given of the date, time, place and 
general agenda in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – up to 5 speakers/3 minutes each 
Rosalie Murray, Heller Hill Road, said that she has been reviewing the records of the 
Community Center remediation project and has concerns.  She said that more than 
$500,000.00 has been spent on this to date without any solicitation of bids.   She understands 
that the reason for this is because the project was deemed an emergent situation.  Mrs. Murray 
wanted to know how this was determined and if expert testimony was used.   Mayor Mach 
replied that when a tank was unearthed, it was discovered that there was oil in the ground and 
on the surface of the water underneath the tank.  There was now oil exposed and fumes.  These 
conditions were the basis to deem it an emergent situation.  Mayor Mach said that no expert 
testimony was involved due to the obvious conditions which existed. 
 
Mrs. Murray said that she has been told that two companies were employed for the 
remediation, the first being Core Environmental Services and then Whitman Company.  Mrs. 
Murray questioned why bids were not solicited at the time the township changed from Core 
Environmental to Whitman Company.  Robert Benbrook, Township Attorney, responded that 
the initial work performed by Whitman Company was a professional service which does not 
require a contract.  Secondly, Mr. Benbrook said that it was clearly an emergent situation 
because there was contaminated ground water.   Mrs. Murray said that she understands that, 
but does not understand why there was an eight (8) month lapse from the time Whitman 
submitted a written proposal to the time the work commenced.  She feels that there was time 
at this point to go out for bid.  Mr. Benbrook said that wells were drilled and sampled during 
this period.  It also needed to be determined if there was contamination under the building. 



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 11 
 

Helen Parisi, Historic Preservation Commission Chair, asked about the proper procedure for 
getting estimates for work performed.  Mr. Lance answered that the procedure is to go the CFO 
and tell her the scope of the project and let her handle it.  She is a qualified purchasing agent, 
certified by the State of NJ, and will know what needs to be done.  Mrs. Parisi asked if verbal 
estimates are acceptable.  Mr. Lance said that the CFO will determine if a verbal estimate is 
allowable.  Mrs. Parisi said that there were statements made at the June meeting that she feels 
were not accurate.  She said that Mr. Lance said that the Historic Preservation Commission did 
not get three (3) estimates for the painting of the caboose.  Mrs. Parisi said that three estimates 
were obtained.  Mr. Lance said that Mrs. Parisi stated at a previous meeting that three 
estimates were not obtained.  Mayor Mach said that he also remembers Mrs. Parisi making that 
statement. 
 
Mrs. Parisi also said that Mr. Anderson said that mistakes were made regarding the sign they 
bought.  Mr. Anderson said that he stated that the date was wrong on the sign and it cost 
taxpayer monies to have this corrected.   
 
Kendrya Close, Foodshed Alliance, came before the Committee to request the continued use of 
the lot on Stillwater Road for the Farmers Market.  Mr. Lance made a motion to approve this 
use, which was seconded by Mr. Anderson. 
 
  Roll call vote:  AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Mach 
     NAY – Seal  
 
Herman Shoemaker, Bingham Lane, and John Maxman of JHM Signs of Phillipsburg, spoke 
about the proposed signs to designate the Main Street business area.  There was a discussion 
on the locations.  Mr. Shoemaker and Mr. Maxman presented a drawing of the signs and the 
proposed locations. 
 
Mr. Lance said that he would like to make the triangle into a focal point for the business area 
with the sign included as a part of this.  Mr. Shoemaker said that the price for two (2) single 
sided signs and one (1) double-sided sign, including installation, is $4,600.  Mr. Shoemaker said 
that he is not asking the Committee for approval or a commitment to funds at this point.  He 
only wants the Committee to be aware of the proposal at this point.   Mayor Mach questioned 
whether the Blairstown Business Association would contribute. 
 
Paul Avery, Mohican Road, said that the Fourth of July Celebration Committee has organized a 
walk for the Cell Phone for Soldiers group at Blair Academy.  He has prepared a waiver for the 
walkers and would like it approved.  Mr. Benbrook asked Mr. Avery to give the waiver to the 
Clerk, who will submit it to the township’s insurance carrier for approval. 
 
MINUTES  
May 11, 2011 – Regular Meeting and Closed Session  
 
Mr. Lance made a motion to approve the minutes, which was seconded by Mayor Mach.  
 



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 11 
 

 Roll call vote:  AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
 
DISCUSSION – Dog Park 
Mr. Seal said that he wanted this topic discussed because he feels that there are many 
unanswered questions.  His main concern is that it was stated from the beginning that there is 
no money available from the township to organize and maintain a dog park.  Mr. Seal would like 
an ordinance drafted that clearly states the township’s responsibilities and the dog park 
committee’s responsibilities.   
 
Mr. Seal questioned whether the area in question would have to be seeded and have top soil 
added.  This would require work and maintenance by the DPW workers.  This is an expenditure 
of township time and funds.   
 
Rebecca Seaman of the Dog Park Committee stated that they will raise the funds in order to 
purchase and install the fence.  She said that seeding was offered to them by the Township 
Committee, but it is not imperative for the dog park. 
 
Mr. Seal said that it was stated at the beginning of these discussions that the DPW would not 
have to maintain the Dog Park.   He feels that it would be a burden on the DPW employees if 
they were to mow the park due to the current decrease in manpower. 
 
Mr. Seal repeated that an ordinance is the best way to make sure that all of these issues are 
settled beforehand so that there are no misunderstandings. 
 
Mr. Anderson said that he proposes to treat this park the same as all the other recreational 
facilities in the township.  The DPW mows the grass at the other parks, and he feels that it 
would not be a hardship since the DPW employees already mow the grass at the municipal 
building.  He stipulated that the dog park users would be held to cleaning up after the dogs.  If 
this were not done, the DPW employees would not be required to mow the dog park area.   Mr. 
Lance said that in his conversations with DPW employees, they are not so concerned about 
mowing the park as they are about the dogs not being picked up after.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
Mr. Benbrook was directed to draft an ordinance addressing regulations for the dog park 
ordinance for the July meeting.   After discussion, it was determined that the park users would 
be responsible for disposing of the dog clean-up disposal bags.  This will be included in the 
ordinance. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2011 – 02 AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 29 OF THE CODE OF THE 
TOWNSHIP OF BLAIRSTOWN ENTITLED “HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION” TO 
PROVIDE FOR A NEW CHAPTER 29 ENTITLED “HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMITTEE”  
Adoption, Second Reading 
Committee Discussion 
Public Hearing – Open/Close 

 



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 4 of 11 
 

Mayor Mach said that he is proposing to table this until next month’s meeting because he 
would like to have a membership list in place for the newly formed Historic Preservation 
Committee.  Mr. Seal said that he would like to table this to explore whether the current 
commission could assist in obtaining a grant for the Paulina Dam repairs.  Mayor Mach said that 
the Commission would have a month to look into this.  Mayor Mach made a motion to table the 
ordinance until the July meeting, and to request that the Historic Preservation Commission 
report to the Township Committee on the existence of grant monies.   The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Lance. 
 
 Roll call vote:  AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2011 – 03 AN AMENDED ORDINANCE “FIXING THE SALARIES AND WAGES 
OF THE OFFICIALS, APPOINTEES AND EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BLAIRSTOWN IN THE 
COUNTY OF WARREN AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY” BY SALARY RANGE 
Adoption, Second Reading 
Committee Discussion 
 
There was no Committee discussion. 
 
Public Hearing  
Mayor Mach opened the Public Hearing.  As there were no comments or questions from the 
public, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Lance made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2011 – 03 on second reading, which was 
seconded by Mr. Lascari. 
 
 Roll call vote:  AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2011 – 04 AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR VARIOUS EQUIPMENT AND 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE BLAIRSTOWN AMBULANCE CORPS WITHIN THE TOWNSHIP OF 
BLAIRSTOWN AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE FUNDING THEREOF 
Introduction, First Reading 
Committee Discussion  
 
There was no Committee discussion. 
 
Mr. Lance made a motion to approve Ordinance 2011 – 04 on first reading, which was 
seconded by Mr. Lascari. 
 
 Roll call vote:  AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
 
Public Comment on the Consent Agenda Items Only 
Rosalie Murray, asked about R.2011-077 – Authorization to Cancel Grant Monies.   Mayor Mach 
said that the grant monies were for road repairs.  Mr. Lance explained that the monies were 
unexpended for completed road repair projects and will be transferred back to surplus.                                  



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 5 of 11 
 

CONSENT AGENDA INCLUDING RESOLUTIONS 
   1 – R.2011-068 Authorization to Pay Bills  
   2 – R.2011-069 Cancellation of 2011 Taxes 
   3 – R.2011-070 Authorization to Release Application and Escrow Fees 
   4 – R.2011-071 Authorization to Cancel Lien on B803, L2.02 
   5 – R.2011-072 2011 Salaries and Wages 
   6 – R.2011-073 Salary Increase of Assistant Treasurer 
   7 – R.2011-074 Review of 2010 Audit 
   8 – R.2011-075 Appointment of William L. Klindt, Jr.  as Alternate Crossing Guard 
   9 – R.2011-076 Approval of Liquor License Renewals 
 10 – R.2011-077 Authorization to Cancel Grant Monies 
    
Mr. Seal made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was seconded by Mr. Anderson. 
 
 Roll call vote:  AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach              
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 Clerk – May Report  
 Finance – May Finance and Fuel Reports 
 Police Department – May Report 
 Tax Collector – May Report 
 Animal Control Officer – 1st Quarter, 2011  
 Municipal Court of North Warren – April, 2011 
 Warren County Health Department – May 6, 2011 
     
Mr. Seal made a motion to approve the reports, which was seconded by Mr. Lascari. 
 
 Roll call vote:  AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1 –  Route 94 traffic concerns – Light installed 

Mr. Lascari said that Pete McKenna called him to report that he escaped a serious 
accident when making a left-hand turn onto Route 94 from the A&P.  Mr. Lascari, Mr. 
Rodman, Mr. Gara and David Diehl met to discuss the dangerous situation at this light.  
The DOT was contacted by Mr. Rodman, who said that this light has been installed 
correctly according to their specifications.  It is a complicated issue and Mr. Rodman 
wants to look at the site plan, study this and pursue it further by placing signage to 
alleviate the situation.  After discussion, it was decided to get a recommendation from 
Ted Rodman on how to proceed. 

 
  2 –  JCP&L billing – Mr. Lascari has compiled list of poles 
 Mr. Lascari will have the list ready for the Assistant Treasurer in the near future. 
 



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 6 of 11 
 

  3 –  Main Street concerns – road striping; feral cats; sidewalks 
  
  4 –  Review of Noise Control Ordinance – draft “Peace and Good Order” Ordinance 
 Mr. Gara and Mr. Lascari will be working together on this. 
 
  5 –  Cedar Lake Horse Farm – RFP results under review 
  
  6 –  Service Electric Cable TV – extension of cable service 
 
  7 –  Hazardous Obstructions at Blairstown Airport – waiting for map from State 
 This is still ongoing. 
  
  8 –  Snow Removal on Main Street – Mayor Mach to draft amended ordinance 
  
  9 – Review of Recreation Ordinance – Fair Share Reimbursement 
 This is still in effect, but needs to be updated. 
 
 COMMITTEE CORRESPONDENCE for information and possible action 
1 –  from Dirk Herrmann, resigning as member of Planning Board on May 13, 2011 

Mr. Lance made a motion to accept Mr. Herrmann’s resignation with regrets, which was 
seconded by Mr. Lascari.  All members voted in favor. 
 

2 –  from Debra Waldron, Zoning Board Chair, regarding Zoning Board reappointment 
Mr. Lascari made a motion to appoint John Sartori as a member of the Zoning Board, 
which was seconded by Mr. Seal.  Mr. Lance wished to table the appointment in order 
to review a recently received application.  Mr. Lascari called for a vote on the motion 
that was made and seconded. 
 
Roll call vote: AYE – Anderson, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
  NAY – Lance   

 
3 –  from Barth R. Johnson, P.E., Warren County Engineer’s Office, re:  Engine Braking 
 Regulations 

This is for informational purposes only.  
   
4 –     from Marlene C. Sullivan, Superior County of New Jersey, re:  2010/2011 Annual 
 Visitation of the North Warren at Hope Joint Municipal Court 
 For information only. 
  
5 –  from Patricia Bourne, Cherokee Trail Home Owners Association, requesting a change of 
 degree of difficulty for snow removal reimbursement 

Mr. Anderson explained that Ms. Bourne explains in her letter that a section of the road 
has a severe icing condition which she feels warrants a change in the road rating from a 
2 to a 3 or a 4.  After discussion, it was decided that Mr. Seal will review the road with a 
member of the DPW and will report back to the Committee. 



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 7 of 11 
 

 
6 –  from Washington Township – Resolution for Fair Share Distribution of State Aid for 
 Education 

This resolution was discussed by the Committee.  It was decided to endorse it and 
forward it on to the appropriate legislators.  Mr. Lascari made a motion to this effect, 
which was seconded by Mr. Anderson. 
 
Roll call vote: AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 

 
GENERAL CORRESPONDENCE (See attached sheet) 
There were no comments from the public on the General Correspondence list. 
 
FROM THE TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY 
Mr. Benbrook said that the grievances of Officer Bee and Officer Falcicchio still need to be 
addressed.  Officer Bee contacted Mr. Benbrook and would like his grievance reinstated.  He 
will be giving the Committee additional information through Officer Losey.  Officer Falcicchio 
was supposed to be heard tonight but was unable to attend.  Mr. Benbrook suggested handling 
both grievances at the August meeting.   Mr. Anderson made a motion to reinstate Officer Bee’s 
grievance with the stipulation that the additional documentation is received on or before July 
31, 2011.  Mr. Lascari seconded the motion. 
 
 Roll call vote: AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
 
Mr. Anderson made a motion to hold Officer Falcicchio’s hearing on August 10th at 6pm.  Mr. 
Lascari seconded the motion. 
 
 Roll call vote: AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
 
FROM THE TOWNSHIP CLERK 
The Clerk had nothing to report. 
 
FROM THE TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
COMMITTEEMAN ANDERSON  
Mr. Anderson read a letter from Anita Ardia, Senior Citizens’ Advisory Committee, thanking the 
Committee for this year’s budget appropriation.  She said that the senior trips are very 
important to many of the senior citizens in the community. 
 
Mr. Anderson made a motion to make a step increase for Officer Jonathan Bee from Class IV 
Officer to Senior Officer with a salary of $72,376.81 as of June 14th.  This increase is in 
accordance with the Police contract currently in effect.  Mr. Lascari seconded the motion.   
 
 Roll call vote: AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
 
Mr. Anderson summarized the Police Report for the month of May, 2011. 
 



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 8 of 11 
 

Mayor Mach referred to a newspaper article he recently distributed to the Committee 
members regarding fracking, the practice of drilling for gas that has been going on in 
Pennsylvania.  Mayor Mach said that he sent a letter to the Environmental Commission asking 
for information on whether or not Blairstown is underlayed with Marcellus shale. He also asked 
the Commission to review the resolutions passed by several municipalities calling for a 
statewide ban of this practice, and to give an opinion as to whether the Committee should also 
adopt a similar resolution. 
 
 
COMMITTEEMAN LANCE 
Mr. Lance spoke about the repair needed on the transfer case on the fire department vehicle.  
Fire & Safety Services submitted an estimate of $23,500 for the repairs.  Mr. Lance said that the 
CFO suggested using the donation monies from Blair Academy and to reimburse this amount if 
there is money remaining at the end of the year.  Mr. Lance agreed with this suggestion, stating 
that a transfer for these funds could be made after November 1st.  Mayor Mach said that he has 
a problem with this because this money was given to the fire department to purchase safety 
equipment.  Mike Sullivan, Fire Chief, said that this money has already been earmarked for a 
cascade system.  OHSA will be inspecting the fire department this month and the new cascade 
system is required to be compliant.    
  
Mr. Lance said that the only other option is to have an emergency appropriation.  He would 
rather not do it this way because if the emergency appropriation is for $30,000, this means that 
there will be a $30,000.00 deficit before the new year begins.  Mr. Lascari questioned whether 
the township could make payments to Fire & Safety.   Mr. Anderson said that a part of this 
problem is that Hardwick Township has reduced its funding for the fire department this year.  It 
has come to the point where Blairstown cannot cover other municipalities without their 
contributing funds. 
 
Mayor Mach pointed out that the estimate is for $23,500.00, but Fire & Safety has indicated 
that the cost may be much higher when the transfer case and pump are disassembled.   
 
After discussion, it was decided that an emergency appropriation would be made to cover the 
expense of this repair.  Mr. Lascari made a motion to make an emergency appropriation of up 
to $30,000 to fund the repairs to a fire department vehicle.  Mayor Mach seconded the motion. 
 
 Roll call vote:  AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
 
Mr. Lance said that the initial problems at the Water Department have been worked out and 
everything appears to be working smoothing.   
 
The Boy Scouts are holding a Father’s Day breakfast on Sunday, June 19th from 7:30 am to 11:30 
am at Givens Belet.  Relay for Life will be held at the North Warren Regional High School on 
June 10th and 11th with ceremonies beginning at 6pm.  
 
COMMITTEEMAN LASCARI 



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 9 of 11 
 

The circus will be held on Saturday, June 11th with shows at 5pm and 7pm, and on Sunday, June 
12th, with shows at 2pm and 4pm.    Mr. Lascari said that the circus employees will be selling 
various items.  Mr. Lascari made a motion to waive the permit application fees for circus 
employees.  This motion was seconded by Mr. Lance.  
 
 Roll call vote:  AYE – Anderson, Lance, Lascari, Seal, Mach 
 
North Warren Regional High School will hold graduation ceremonies on Friday, June 17th at 
6pm. 
 
COMMITTEEMAN SEAL 
The drainage problem on Walnut Valley Road still exists.  The homeowner involved has 
objected to the berm so the DPW will work on a satisfactory solution. 
 
The DPW is in need of a new lawnmower.  Three quotes have been obtained so a purchase will 
be made in the near future. 
  
MAYOR MACH 
Mayor Mach said that there have been reports that our COAH plan has been reversed by the 
Courts.  It is Mayor Mach’s opinion that the Committee do nothing until official word is received 
that our Substantive Certification has been revoked.  Mr. Benbrook agrees with this course of 
action.  Darlene Jay of Maser said that she would give an estimate on what is needed to “patch” 
the current plan to make it compliant.  This estimate would be at no charge to the township.  
The Committee was in agreement to ask Ms. Jay to provide this estimate. 
 
Mayor Mach referred to a memorandum from Theresa Tamburro, Municipal Housing Liaison, 
stating that the 2-bedroom accessory apartment and 1 bedroom market to affordable unit on 
Mountain Terrace approved at the May meeting has been changed to a 2-bedroom market to 
affordable unit and a 1-bedroom accessory apartment.  Ms. Tamburro is now requesting 
approval for two (2) new COAH units, a 3-bedroom unit and a 1-bedroom unit.  Both units are 
market to affordable.  Mayor Mach said that it is desirable to spend down the money in the 
COAH trust so it does not go back to the State.  The Committee was in agreement to go ahead 
with the new units. 
 
Mayor Mach said that with the resignation of Dirk Herrmann, the Planning Board is in need of a 
Class II member.  He asked the Committee to make suggestions on a possible appointment.  
The new member must be an official within the municipality, either with the township 
government or the Board of Education. 
 
FROM THE PUBLIC 
Mayor Mach opened the meeting to the public.   
 
Herman Shoemaker, Bingham Lane, said that the Blairstown Business Association is drafting a 
petition to get the striping on Main Street going.  Mr. Shoemaker asked who the Committee 



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 10 of 11 
 

contact person is on this matter.  Mr. Lance said he would call David Hicks of Warren County to 
see if the County is still willing to mark it out. 
 
Anthony and Fredericka Bergamo, Hope Road, spoke about a condition he considers dangerous.  
Mr. Bergamo’s neighbors have constructed 10 large flags on his fence in front of their yard.  
This makes it impossible for him to see when exiting his driveway.  He believes that this is a 
zoning violation.  On June 5th, he called the Police Department.  On June 6th, he spoke to Officer 
in Charge Losey, who said that an investigation was conducted, but that there is nothing the 
police can do because it is on private property.  Sergeant Losey told Mr. Bergamo to contact the 
Zoning Official.  Mr. Bergamo asked Sergeant Losey for a copy of the police report, but was told 
he could not have it because he was the complainant and not a victim.  
  
Mr. Bergamo talked to the Zoning Official who said he recently drove by the neighbor’s house.  
The Zoning Official told him that he should go to the Police Department.  On June 8th, Mr. 
Bergamo filed a statement form with the Police Department detailing the situation.   After that, 
Mr. Bergamo went to the Zoning Official and filed an official complaint.  The Zoning Official said 
that he would go back and check on the violation when he has an opportunity.  Mr. Bergamo 
said that he has complained about this for three years to no avail.  He said that it is a very 
dangerous situation and he cannot wait any longer for the situation to be rectified.   He has 
come to the meeting tonight in the hope that the Committee can help him. 
 
Beth Arena, High Street, asked about the procedure for adopting ordinances.  She feels that the 
Peace and Good Order ordinance has been put on hold and does not seem to be a priority with 
the Committee.   She asked the Committee if there was any interest in adopting this ordinance.  
Mr. Anderson said that he is reluctant to have an ordinance that regulates good behavior.   Mr. 
Lascari said that the draft is a work in progress and he will be asking for Mr. Gara’s input.  
 
Helen Parisi, Historic Preservation Commission Chair, asked Mr. Benbrook about Paulina Dam 
and its status as an historic site.  Mr. Benbrook said that he has been told that it will be certified 
as historic if not certified already.   Ms. Parisi said that the historic status will help in getting a 
grant.  She said that applying for grants was the main reason they asked to become a 
commission as opposed to a committee.  She wants the Committee to understand that it takes 
time to apply for and receive grants. 
 
Rosalie Murray, Heller Hill Road, referred to a study on the Paulina Dam which she recently 
received from the township.  Ms. Murray said that the study says that the dam is located in 
Hardwick, not Blairstown.  Mr. Lance said that this is an error, but the Committee will look into 
it. 
 
Anita Ardia, Dry Road, complimented Mr. Seal on his forthright comments during tonight’s 
meeting.  She said that she did not understand why the Committee wanted to change the 
Historic Preservation Commission back to a committee.  Mr. Lance responded that the one 
incident that bothered him was the invoice for painting the caboose, which he has already 
described.  Mr. Anderson said that the discussions on this change have been going on for 
several months. 



 

MINUTES – June 8, 2011 Regular Meeting  Page 11 of 11 
 

Mrs. Ardia wanted the Committee to know that she was instrumental in the creation of the 
Historic Preservation Committee years ago.  Mayor Mach asked her why it was decided at that 
time to form a committee instead of a commission.  Mrs. Ardia said that it was the issue of 
having more control over the entity.  Mayor Mach said that this is the purpose of the change.  
The Township Committee does not want to abolish the group entirely but wishes to have more 
control in view of the issues that have taken place.  Mr. Anderson added that the issue of 
control has been stated up front right from the beginning of these discussions. 
 
Mrs. Ardia asked about the dog park and whether or not it would increase the township’s 
insurance.  The Clerk indicated that the insurance carrier was contacted and that we were told 
that a dog park would not increase the cost of our insurance. 
 
Helen Parisi said that she does not understand the issue of control over the commission.   
Mayor Mach said that there was an instance of the commission having to send a check to the 
federal government returning grant monies.  Mrs. Parisi said that this was a case of conflicting 
information from the CFO and the Attorney Kevin Benbrook. 
 
Mrs. Ardia asked if the township had to go through the same bidding procedure with grant 
monies that need to be followed generally.  Mr. Anderson said that Attorney Kevin Benbrook 
had corrected himself and stated that bid procedures needed to be followed with grant monies. 
 
Rosalie Murray, Heller Hill Road, asked why the bidding procedure was not followed with the 
remediation work when there was an eight (8) month lapse in the clean-up work.  Mr. Lance 
said that there was never that long of a period of time when no work was being done.  Mayor 
Mach responded that Mrs. Murray has the luxury of looking over the entire procedure 
historically, when the Committee, in fact, was dealing with the emergent situation on a daily 
basis.  Mayor Mach is confident that the Committee dealt with the situation as best they could, 
following correct protocol.  All decisions were made in public with the township attorney 
guiding the Committee at every turn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
As there were no further comments from the public, Mr. Lance made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting, which was seconded by Mr. Seal with all members in favor.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 10:40 pm. 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
Phyllis E. Pizzaia, RMC 
Municipal Clerk 


